
 
 
Gateway Science Academy Board of Directors Meeting 

                                                                           August 19, 2019 at 4:30pm 
                                          
                                                                  Concept Schools Regional Office 

          6025 Chippewa St. Ste. 206, 
              St. Louis, MO 63109 

  
                                                                                      AGENDA  
  

Call to Order               Mr. Goerger 

Roll Call                Mr. Goerger  

Mission Statement                Mr. Goerger 

Approval of the Agenda                                                                            Mr. Goerger  

Public Input Session              Mr. Goerger 

(Please note, the GSA Board public participation policy allows each speaker no more than three minutes and 

each topic is limited to no more than 20 minutes except with concurrence of the majority of the Board.) 

Announcements/Acknowledgements   

 

Consent Agenda                 Mr. Goerger 

         Approval of June 14, 2019, Special Meeting Minutes           Mr. Goerger 
Approval of May and June 2019-End of Year- Financials                                      Mr. Damar                                       

Approval of Health Insurance Benefit Increase                                                 Mr. Blackstone                   

Approval of Personnel Report                                                                                   Mr. Blackstone               

Approval of SPED Local Compliance Plan                                                 Mr. Blackstone  

 Approval of Staff and Student/Parent Handbook                        Mr. Blackstone                 

Student Achievement and Activities                    

         Superintendent’s Report                  Mr. Blackstone  
 
          New School Year 
          19.20 Student Enrollment and Retention Rate 
          2018-2019 Student Achievement Report and Support Plan for Low Achievers         
          Facility Update & Construction Loan 
          Updates from the Law Seminar          
          
 Governing Board Related                  Mr. Goerger 

 New Board Member                 Mr. Goerger                           
Board Positions                  Mr. Goerger                               
Board Training Policy Review & Upcoming Opportunities             Mrs. Hunt & Mr. Blackstone 
Annual Conflict of Interest Statement                           Mr. Blackstone                
Annual Evaluations: Management and Board              Mr. Goerger                     
Policy Updates                                                                                                            Mr. Blackstone 

                  

 Other Business:          

 National Breakfast Lunch Program                             Mrs. Hunt                           
MCPSA Annual Conference                 Mr. Blackstone                    

 Adjourn the Meeting                   Mr.Goerger 

 Items in italics are action items. 



Gateway Science Academy 
Board of Directors Meeting 

     June 14, 2019, at 12:00 pm 
   

Concept Schools Regional Office 
6025 Chippewa St. Ste. 206 

St. Louis, MO 63109 
 

MEETING MINUTES     

1. Session Opening: 
Mr. Goerger commenced the meeting to order with the roll call (12:20 pm) at the address 6025 
Chippewa St., Suite 206, St. Louis, MO 63109. 

 
Members Present: Orville (Beau) Goerger, Patricia Hunt, Ben Diefenbach-online via Zoom, 

Mehmet Kahveci, Tim Bagwell, Jacquelyn Lewis-Harris 

Members Absent: Patrick Walker 

Concept Schools: Engin Blackstone, Superintendent 

The Mission Statement is read by Mr. Goerger. 

 2. Adopt an Agenda: 
Mr. Diefenbach made a motion to adopt an agenda. The motion was seconded by Mr. Kahveci. 

Motion approved.  

3. Public Input: 
 None 

4. Announcements/Acknowledgements 
 None 

5. Approval of the Consent Agenda  
Mrs. Hunt moved, Mr. Diefenbach seconded to approve the consent agenda. 

Approval of June 3, 2019, Meeting Minutes:  
The last sentence of the Breakfast Lunch Program is changed as follows: This item will be 

added to the next meeting agenda for further discussion. 

 

 

 



    Approval of the Contractor for New Building Renovation Project: 

Mr. Blackstone went over the bidding and contractor selection process for the renovation project 

and asked the Board’s approval for Hunter Construction to perform the job. Their proposed 

guaranteed maximum price for the project is $2,667,174.  

Dr. Lewis-Harris raised her concern about the process, and it is addressed by the GSA attorney. 

The consent agenda approved unanimously. 

6. Adjourn the Meeting  
Dr.Bagwell moved to adjourn the meeting, Mr. Diefenbach seconded. The meeting adjourned at 

1:06 pm.  











______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Phone: 573-751-0699 Fax: 573-751-3910

webreplyspeco@dese.mo.gov

August 1, 2019 

Dear Superintendent/Administrator: 

ACTION REQUIRED

Federal regulations implementing Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA) require responsible public agencies providing for the education of children 
with disabilities within their jurisdiction to have in effect policies, procedures, and 
programs that are consistent with the state policies established under applicable federal 
regulations. At this time, the Office of Special Education has published an updated model 
Local Plan for Compliance which is consistent with the provisions in the Missouri State 
Plan for Special Education which became effective July 30, 2019. This document is 
available on our website at http://dese.mo.gov/special-education/compliance/local-
compliance-plan. This letter contains instructions for the completion of compliance 
requirements regarding the adoption of your agency’s Local Compliance Plan for Special 
Education.  

Please note:  Even if your agency does not receive any IDEA Part B funds, your agency 
is still required to have a local compliance plan and submit annual assurances to DESE 
regarding the provision of services to students with disabilities under the IDEA.  

If you have any questions regarding the procedures for adopting/adapting the Local 
Compliance Plan, please contact the Compliance Section at 573-751-0699 or via email to
secompliance@dese.mo.gov.  

Sincerely,

Beverly Luetkemeyer, Director
Special Education Compliance 

la
Enclosures 
c: Director of Special Education



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone: 573-751-0699 Fax: 573-751-3910

secompliance@dese.mo.gov

Instructions for Adopting/Adapting the Local Compliance Plan 
for the Office of Special Education
***Due Date—October 1, 2019***

In order to assist the responsible public agencies in meeting the requirement to have a Local Compliance 
Plan, the Office of Special Education has made available a model plan which can be found on our 
website at http://dese.mo.gov/special-education/compliance/local-compliance-plan.  

Public agencies must have adopted or adapted a Local Compliance Plan and by October 1, 2019, must 
complete the enclosed certification statement in accordance with the instructions below: 

Step 1.  Your agency must choose one of the following options for their local compliance plan: 

Option A. Adopt the model plan provided by the Department of Elementary and Secondary 
Education (DESE). If the agency adopts the state’s model plan, it is automatically 
approved by DESE. You do not need to submit a copy of your plan to DESE, but a 
certification statement must be submitted.

Option B. Adopt the model plan with local revisions. The agency must submit a copy of the
pages on which revisions have been made with the revisions highlighted. These 
revisions must be approved by DESE before the agency’s compliance becomes final. 
(Note: Simply placing your agency’s name into the model plan does not constitute a 
revision. Revisions are substantive changes to the content of the plan.) 

Option C. Write your own compliance plan. The agency must submit a copy of the plan for 
approval by DESE. The agency’s plan will not become final until receipt of approval 
from DESE.

Step 2.  Your agency’s governing board must approve the Local Compliance Plan and complete the 
enclosed certification statement. (see notes 1-4)

Step 3. For all options listed above, submit the certification statement to the address below. The 
certification can be found at:
https://dese.mo.gov/sites/default/files/Local%20Compliance%20Plan%20Certification%20Statement_1.
pdf. Also, submit the model compliance plan to DESE only if required in accordance with the 
instructions in Step 1, option B or C.

All required documentation is to be submitted to: 

MO Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
Office of Special Education-Compliance 
Attn: Lori Abercrombie 
P.O. Box 480 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 
Fax: 573-751-3910 



MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION 
OFFICE OF SPECIAL EDUCATION-COMPLIANCE 

LOCAL COMPLIANCE PLAN CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NAME COUNTY-DISTRICT CODE 

DISTRICT CONTACT DISTRICT PHONE NUMBER DISTRICT FAX NUMBER 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Complete the Adoption and Certification sections below.  The form must be signed by the Board President, Superintendent, and 
Compliance Plan Contact. 

Submit form via MAIL or FAX to: Special Education Compliance 
Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
PO Box 480 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 or Fax 573-751-3910 

QUESTIONS:  Contact Special Education Compliance at 573-751-0699 or secompliance@dese.mo.gov 

ADOPTION 

The Responsible Public Agency has chosen the following (check only one) in regard to adoption of a local plan for compliance 
with state and federal regulations implementing the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA):         

Option A:  Adopt the Model Compliance Plan made available by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
(DESE). 

Option B:  Adapt the Model Compliance Plan made available by the Department with agency revisions.  All pages on which 
revisions have been made to the Model Compliance Plan with highlighted revisions are enclosed. These revisions must 
be approved by DESE before the agency's plan becomes final. 

Option C: Agency developed Compliance Plan (plan enclosed for DESE’s approval). 

Certification
 

CERTIFICATION 

The Responsible Public Agency assures that the agency's Compliance Plan and applicable state and federal regulations constitute the 
basis for operation and administration of the activities to be carried out in the agency under Part B of the IDEA, to provide special 
education services for all children with disabilities between the ages of three (3) and twenty-one (21) who meet the eligibility criteria 
as stated in this plan and under the jurisdiction of the agency. 

The Responsible Public Agency assures that programs administered under Part B of the IDEA are in accordance with the assurances 
provided in 34 CFR 76.301 of the General Education Provision Act (GEPA) and that federal funds made available under Part B of the 
IDEA are used in accordance with the excess cost and maintenance of fiscal effort and comparable services requirements of 34 CFR 
Sections 300.202 - 300.205 of the federal regulations governing the IDEA. 

The local compliance plan was adopted by the Governing Board of the agency on ________________ (mm/dd/yy). 

SIGNATURE OF BOARD PRESIDENT DATE 

SIGNATURE OF SUPERINTENDENT DATE 

SIGNATURE OF COMPLIANCE PLAN CONTACT PERSON DATE 

The Department of Elementary and Secondary Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, or disability in its programs 
and activities.  Inquiries related to Department programs and to the location of services, activities, and facilities that are accessible by persons with disabilities may be directed 
to the Jefferson State Office Building, Office of the General Counsel, Coordinator – Civil Rights Compliance (Title VI/Title IX/504/ADA/Age Act), 6

th
 Floor, 205 Jefferson Street, 

P.O. Box 480, Jefferson City, MO 65102-0480; telephone number 573-526-4757 or TTY 800-735-2966;  email civilrights@dese.mo.gov. 

MO 500-3046 (08/17)  

mailto:secompliance@dese.mo.gov
mailto:civilrights@dese.mo.gov


GSA BOARD TRAINING POLICY 

Each member of the GSA Board will complete annual training. This requirement will be fulfilled through 

any of the following: 

- Conference 

- Webinars 

- Retreats 

- Workshops and Seminars 

- Coaching or training 

The Board collectively will also assess and review strategic planning, financial management, and 

onboarding of new Board members. The annual training report will be provided to the sponsor each 

year. 





Conflict of Interest Policy 

 

The Board of GATEWAY SCIENCE ACADEMY of ST. LOUIS (GSA) adopts the following policy, effective 

on the date of adoption by the Board. 

This policy establishes expectations for governing board member conflicts of interest. 

Article I 

Purpose 

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt organization’s (GSA) 

interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might 

benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the GSA or might result in a possible 

excess benefit transaction.  This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any 

applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and 

charitable GSAs.  As a charter school, certain special state conflicts of interest policies apply 

as discussed herein. 

Article II 

Definitions 

1. Interested Person 

Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board 

delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is 

an interested person. 

2. Financial Interest 

A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through 

business, investment, or family: 

a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the GSA 

has a transaction or arrangement, 

b. A compensation arrangement with the GSA or with any entity or 

individual with which the GSA has a transaction or arrangement, or 

c. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation 

arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the GSA is negotiating a 

transaction or arrangement. 

 



Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that 

are not insubstantial. 

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest.  Under Article III, Section 

2, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the 

appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists. 

Article III 

Procedures 

1. Duty to Disclose 

In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person 

must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to 

disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with 

governing board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or 

arrangement. 

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists 

After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any 

discussion with the interested person, s/he shall leave the governing board or 

committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and 

voted upon.  The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of 

interest exists. 

Under Missouri law, the following are conflicts of interest.  The Board has no discretion 

on whether these items present a conflict of interest.  No person shall be appointed 

to the board unless they meet the following requirements.  Any board member who 

is in violation of any of these requirements is ineligible to serve and shall immediately 

forfeit their office: 

a.  No member of the Board shall hold any other office or employment from 

the board while serving as a member of the board. 

b.  No member of the board shall have any substantial interest (see section 

105.450 RSMo for a definition) in any entity employed by or contracting with 

the board.   

c.  No member of the board shall be an employee of a company that provides 

substantial services to the charter school. 

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest 

a. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board 

or committee meeting, but after the presentation, s/he shall leave the 

meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or 

arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest. 



b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if 

appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate 

alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement. 

c. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall 

determine whether the GSA can obtain with reasonable efforts a more 

advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would 

not give rise to a conflict of interest. 

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably 

possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the 

governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the 

disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the GSA’s 

best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable.  In 

conformity with the above determination, it shall make its decision as to 

whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement. 

4. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy 

a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a 

member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall 

inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an 

opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. 

b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further 

investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or 

committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or 

possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 

corrective action. 

Article IV 

Records of Proceedings 

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall 

contain: 

a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a 

financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the 

nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of 

interest was present, and the governing board’s or committee’s decision as to 

whether a conflict of interest in fact existed. 

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating 

to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any 

alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes 

taken in connection with the proceedings. 



Article V 

Compensation 

a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly 

or indirectly, from the GSA for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining 

to that member’s compensation. 

b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation 

matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the GSA for 

services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member’s 

compensation. 

c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction 

includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or 

indirectly, from the GSA, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing 

information to any committee regarding compensation. 

 

Article VI 

Annual Statements 

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board delegated 

powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person: 

a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy, 

b. Has read and understands the policy, 

c. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and 

d. Understands the GSA is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax 

exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its 

tax-exempt purposes. 

 

Article VII 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure the GSA operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not 

engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be 

conducted.  The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects: 

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on 

competent survey information, and the result of arm’s length bargaining, 



b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management 

GSAs conform to the GSA’s written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable 

investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do 

not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit 

transaction. 

 

Article VIII 

Use of Outside Experts 

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article VII, the GSA may, but need 

not, use outside advisors.  If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing 

board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted. 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

 

I attest that I _______________________________________ am an active member of the  

Gateway Science Academy of St. Louis Governing Board. I have read and received a copy of  

this conflict of interest statement. 

 

____________________________________________                       ______________________ 

Signature                      Date 

 


















	GSA Board Meeting Agenda August 19, 2019
	GSA Board Special Meeting Minutes June 14, 2019
	FY19 Financial Statements
	Compliance_11MCP_LetterInstructions.Final
	Local Compliance Plan Certification Statement_1 (1)
	DISTRICT PHONE NUMBER

	GSA Board Training Policy
	091419 Charter School Board Training (1)
	GSA Board Conflict of Interest Statement
	Management - Concept- Evaluation
	Governing Board Self Evaluation

	SCHOOL DISTRICT NAME: GATEWAY SCIENCE ACADEMY OF ST.LOUIS
	COUNTY DISTRICT CODE: 115-916
	DISTRICT CONTACT: Engin Blackstone
	DISTRICT PHONE NUMBER: 314-282-0534
	DISTRICT FAX NUMBER: 
	The local compliance plan was adopted by the Governing Board of the agency on: 08/19/19
	DATE: 08/19/19
	DATE_2: 08/19/19
	DATE_3: 08/19/19
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box3: Off


